
 Do Norwegian statistics show that 88 Scottish Judges or Sheriffs are 
Masons? 

In July 2003, following the Scottish Parliament’s rejection of my public petition PE306 
(calling for judges to register membership of secret societies with fraternal 
obligations) I wrote to the Domstol, the Norwegian courts administration body to 
determine what rules applied regarding this issue in their country. 

I did so because I had been contacted by a Norwegian member of parliament who 
told me that in her country judges must declare membership of the freemasons. 

Sure enough the Domstol confirmed this and also confirmed that judges must also 
declare other interests as well. The Domstol letter is appended in full but the relevant 
passage in support of my petition stated: 

“The judges must register all their extra-judicial activities as laid down in section 
121e. All activities apart from membership of political parties, of professional and 
industrial bodies, and of non-profit-making associations must be registered. Duties 
etc. undertaken on behalf of non-profit-making associations that have fewer than 
100 members are also exempt from registration. 

 

The Norwegian Law Courts Commission was divided on the point of membership in 
non-profit-making associations where members have special obligations. The 
reference here is to so-called “fraternal societies” such as the Freemasons. A 
majority amongst the commission’s members did not want to see introduced any 
kind of special rules related to this kind of society, while a minority proposed that 
membership in such societies should be registered irrespective of the number of 
members in the society concerned. The view on this matter was also divided in the 
consultative round. The Ministry of Justice however viewed this type of societies to 
be different from other types of societies that a special rule was warranted and 
placed the Commission’s minority proposal before the Parliament. The Parliament 
agreed and amended the Courts of Justice Act 121e accordingly. 

 

The National Courts Administration is the entity responsible for keeping the 
register of the judge’s extra-judicial activities. The register is open to the public 
according to section 121h. Prior to the register’s availability on the National Courts 
Administration website from early May this year [2003], information on judges’ 
extra-judicial activities was given upon request. The information the judges are 
required to register is as follows: their name, their title, the court in which they 
serve, the nature of their other duties and or interests, the name of their other 
employer or principal and the time or duration of their other duties or interests. 
Judges are also required to declare whether any income arises from the duty or 
interest in question, although they are not obliged to declare how much income 
they receive. Judges are also exempt from registering single lectures, educational 
talks, addresses etc.   



The register also contains certain information not associated with the judges’ 
extra-judicial activities, but pertaining to the occupation or post held by the judge 
before he or she was appointed to the judgeship. 

 

As you can see from the information given above, making the names of those 
judges who are Freemasons public, is just one part of registering all extra-judicial 
activities of Norwegian judges. Today the national register includes 630 names, i.e. 
approximately 95% of all Norwegian judges, temporary judges included. Only 
twelve are Freemasons.     

 

Sincerely, Sissel Endresen, Head of Judicial Department, Domstol Administration.”  

At the time I received this I sent it to the Scottish Parliament’s Justice Committee as 
they had asked me to provide any further evidence that supported my PE306, which 
they said they would consider. I never received either an acknowledgement or a 
reply. 

As my new petition PE01491 deals with a similar, though extended, subject matter, I 
have sought clarification from the Domstol to establish if there had been any change 
to the Norwegian laws in this regard since 2003. 

The Domstol have advised me (see below) that the number of judges who are 
required, by law, to register membership of the Freemasons has been increased by 
the inclusion of judges in the Land Courts.  

The number of Freemason judges in Norway (where 0.4%* of the population are 
Masons) is twelve. By extrapolation in Scotland (where 2.93%* of the population are 
Masons i.e. 7.325 times more than Norway) there would be about 88 judges or 
sheriffs (7.325 x 12) who are Masons.  

I believe that we are entitled to know who they are. 

*Paul M. Bessel’s Masonic International Statistics 2000.  
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Tom Minogue

From: Karterud, Terje [Terje.Karterud@domstoladministrasjonen.no] on behalf of DA 
(postmottak) [dapost@domstoladministrasjonen.no]

Sent: 01 October 2013 12:50
To: tomminogue@btinternet.com
Subject: 201300001 Re judges who are Freemasons
Attachments: 734092522-NOARK.htm

Dear Sir,  
  
There has been no change in the legislation since our letter to you in July 2003. The only change is that the 
register now also includes the judges in the Land Consolidation Courts. It is therefore now 800 names in the 
register, temporary judges included. Only twelve of chose 800 are Freemasons, which is the same as in 
2003.  
  
  
  
Yours Sincerely 
Terje Karterud 
Senior Advisor 
Department of Legal Affairs 
Norwegian Courts Administration 
Internett: www.domstol.no  
  
  
  








